ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 26, 2002
1: 53 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Beth Kerttul a

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Lesil MQiire

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 140(FIN)

"An Act relating to regulation and licensing of certain water-
power devel opnent projects; and providing for an effective
date."

- MOVED CSSB 140(FIN) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 356 am

"An Act relating to the authority of the Departnent of
Envi ronnmental Conservation to issue general and individual
permts for waste disposal; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 140

SHORT TI TLE: SVALL WATER- POAER DEVELOPMENT PRQJECTS
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) TORGERSON

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

03/ 13/ 01 0641 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/13/01 0641 (S) RES, FIN

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 26, 2002



03/21/01
03/21/01
03/21/01
04/ 06/ 01
04/ 06/ 01
02/ 08/ 02
02/ 08/ 02
02/ 08/ 02
02/ 11/ 02
02/ 11/ 02

02/ 11/ 02
02/ 21/ 02

02/ 21/ 02
02/ 21/ 02
03/01/02
03/01/02
03/01/02
04/ 02/ 02

04/ 02/ 02
04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02
04/ 04/ 02

04/ 04/ 02

04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02
04/ 04/ 02

04/ 04/ 02

04/ 04/ 02
04/ 08/ 02
04/ 08/ 02
04/ 08/ 02
04/ 08/ 02
04/ 08/ 02

04/ 08/ 02

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

2153
2153

2153

2336
2336
2336

2630

2630

2630
2630
2630
2630

2658
2659
2659
2659
2660

2660

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
-- Meeting Canceled --

RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved Qut of Conmttee

M NUTE( RES)

RES RPT 4DP 2NR

DP: TORGERSON, STEVENS,

HAL FORD,

W LKEN; NR: ELTON, LI NCOLN
FIN AT 9: 30 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FN1: (CED)

FN2: ( DNR)

FN3: (DFQ

FIN AT 4: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Heard & Hel d

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Heard & Held -- Recessed to
4:00 pm --

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS 1DP 4NR TECH TI TLE
CH

NR: KELLY, HOFFMAN, W LKEN,
COLSON,;

DP: GREEN

FN1: ( CED)

FN2: ( DNR)

FN3: (DFQ

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Moved CS(FIN) Qut of

Comm ttee

M NUTE( FI N)

RULES TO CALENDAR 1OR 4/8/02
READ THE SECOND TI ME

FIN CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
COSPONSOR('S): LEMAN

ADVANCED TO 3RD READI NG FLD
Y14 N5 El1

ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG 4/ 9

April 26, 2002



CALENDAR

RLS AT 10: 30 AM FAHRENKANP
203

M NUTE( RLS)

READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
140( FI N)

PASSED Y17 N2 E1

EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

ELLI'S NOTI CE OF

RECONS| DERATI ON

RECON TAKEN UP - I N THI RD
READI NG

PASSED ON RECONSI DERATI ON Y15
N3 E1 Al

EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

TRANSM TTED TO ( H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 140( FI N)
READ THE FI RST TIME -
REFERRALS

RES, FIN

RES AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

SHORT TI TLE: GENERAL PERM T FOR WATER/ WASTE DI SPOSAL
STATE AFFAI RS

04/ 08/ 02

04/ 08/ 02

04/ 09/ 02 2687
04/ 09/ 02 2687
04/ 09/ 02 2688
04/ 09/ 02 2688
04/ 10/ 02 2716
04/ 10/ 02 2717
04/ 10/ 02 2717
04/ 10/ 02 2718
04/ 10/ 02 2718
04/ 11/ 02 2877
04/ 11/ 02 2877
04/ 26/ 02

BILL: SB 356
SPONSOR( S) :
Jrn-Date Jrn- Page
03/ 27/ 02 2542
03/ 27/ 02 2542
04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02

04/ 03/ 02

04/ 04/ 02 2631
04/ 04/ 02 2631
04/ 04/ 02 2631
04/ 08/ 02

04/ 08/ 02

04/ 09/ 02 2683
04/ 09/ 02 2686
04/ 09/ 02 2686

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
RES
RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved Qut of Conmmttee
M NUTE( RES)
M NUTE( RES)
RES RPT 4DP
DP: TORGERSON, HALFORD,
STEVENS, W LKEN
FN1: ZERQ( DEC)
RLS AT 10: 30 AM FAHRENKAMP
203
M NUTE( RLS)
RULES TO CALENDAR 4/ 9/ 02
READ THE SECOND TI ME
ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

April 26, 2002



04/ 09/ 02
04/ 09/ 02
04/ 09/ 02
04/ 09/ 02
04/ 10/ 02
04/ 10/ 02

04/ 10/ 02
04/ 10/ 02

04/ 10/ 02
04/ 10/ 02
04/ 10/ 02
04/ 10/ 02
04/ 11/ 02

04/ 11/ 02
04/ 26/ 02

2686
2687
2687
2687
2715
2715

2715
2716

2716
2716
2718
2718
2878

2878

W TNESS REG STER

DARW N PETERSON, St af f

to Senator John Torgerson

Al aska State Legislature
Bui | di ng,
Al aska 99801
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Tor gerson

Capi t ol
Juneau,

SALLY SADDLER, Legislative Liaison
Di vision of Comrunity and Busi ness
Department of Community & Econom c

sponsor.

P. O Box 110801

Juneau,

SUSAN SCHRADER

Al aska Conservation Voters (ACVY)

P.O Box 22151

Juneau,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

Al aska 99802

Room 427

Presented SB

Al aska 99811-0801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
relating to SB 140.

READ THE THI RD TI ME SB 356
PASSED Y17 N2 E1

EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

ELTON NOTI CE OF

RECONS| DERATI ON

RECON TAKEN UP - I N THI RD
READI NG

RETURN TO SECOND FOR AM 1
UNAN CONSENT

AM NO 1 ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT
AUTOMATI CALLY IN THI RD
READI NG ON RECON

PASSED ON RECONSI DERATI ON Y14
N3 E1 A2

EFFECTI VE DATE(S) SAME AS
PASSAGE

TRANSM TTED TO ( H)

VERSI ON:  SB 356 AM

READ THE FI RST TIME -
REFERRALS

RES

RES AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

140 on behalf of Senator John

Devel opnent
Devel opnent

Provi ded testinony and answered questions

April 26, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expressed ACV's concerns relating to SB 140
and SB 356.

JAN KONl GSBERG

Trout Unlimted

1399 West 34th, Suite 205

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony on SB 140; on behal f of
the Al aska Public Waters Coalition he suggested that the current
federal program works but acknow edged that a few problens
exist; urged the commttee to try to fix the current federal
programrather than start a new state program

W LL ABBOIT, Conmi ssi oner

Regul at ory Conm ssi on of Al aska (RCA)

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

1016 West 6th Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony and answered questions
relating to SB 140.

CH P DENNERLEI N, Director

D vision of Habitat and Restoration

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane

333 Raspberry Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99518-1579

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 140; expressed support for
the concept of the bill but also expressed related concerns and
he offered strong support for the adoption of the proposed
anmendnent seeking direction fromthe |egislature.

JOE BALASH, Staff

to Senator Gene Therriault

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 121

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 356 on behalf of the Senate
State Affairs Standing Conmittee, sponsor, which Senator Gene
Therriault chairs.

COLONEL FRED LEHVAN, U.S. Arny Al aska Garrison Conmander

(Address not provided)

Fort Richardson, Al aska 99488

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 356; urged the commttee to
include an anendnent that would exenpt training activities
involving munitions conducted by the U S. Departnent of Defense
or aUS mlitary agency.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 26, 2002



JOHN McDONAGH, Environnental Counsel

U S. Arny Al aska

600 Ri chardson Drive, Number 5700

Fort Richardson, Al aska 99505-6700

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 356; urged the commttee to
include an anendnent that would exenpt training activities
i nvolving munitions conducted by the U S. Departnent of Defense
or aUS mlitary agency.

TOM CHAPPLE, Director

Division of Alr and Water Quality

Depart ment of Environnental Conservation

555 Cordova Street.

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony and answered questions
relating to SB 356.

MATT G LL, Staff

to Representative Eldon Ml der

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on SB 356 on behalf of
Representative Eldon Milder in support of any anmendnent that
would clarify the U S Arny's position regarding the use of the
Eagle River Flats artillery training range.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-39, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO CHAIR BEVERLY MASEK called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:53 p.m Represent ati ves Masek
Scal zi, Green, Chenault, and Stevens were present at the call to
or der. Representatives Kapsner and Kerttula arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

SB 140- SVMALL WATER- PONER DEVELOPMENT PRQJECTS

CO CHAI R MASEK announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 140(FIN), "An Act relating to
regulation and Ilicensing of certain water-power devel opnent
projects; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0075

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 26, 2002



DARW N PETERSON, Staff to Senator John Torgerson, presented SB
140 on behalf of Senator Torgerson, sponsor. M. Peterson
explained that U S Senator Frank Mirkowski had sponsored a bill
anendi ng the Federal Power Act to provide state jurisdiction for
Al aska over small hydroelectric projects. Consequently, this
| egislation transferred licensing and regulatory authority over
hydroel ectric projects of five thousand kilowatts or less to the
State of Al aska.

MR. PETERSON suggested that bringing this regulatory authority

to the state wll reduce the great tinme and expense associ ated
with federal licensing and the regulation of small hydro
projects in Al aska. He noted that the tine and noney required
for federal licensing is virtually prohibitive for sonme snall
utility and personal projects. Before Alaska can acquire
jurisdiction from the Federal Energy Regulatory Conm ssion
(FERC), the legislature nust approve this bill and the governor

must submt a program satisfying FERC s regulatory requirenents.
As SB 140 is currently drafted, the Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska (RCA) would be the regulatory agency responsible. He
said all of the current environnmental protections required under
federal law wll still apply, and cannot be preenpted by this
| egi sl ati on.

Nunber 0228

CO CHAIR SCALZI noted that the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
(ADF&G) had expressed concerns about the scope of review and the
time allotnent, and he said ADF&G suggested that there hadn't
been adequate tinme to address issues that may occur in the
approximately six hundred different sites throughout the state.
He asked M. Peterson if there had been discussion with ADF&G on
remedyi ng those concerns.

MR. PETERSON in response, noted that Senator Torgerson is
famliar with ADF&G s concerns. He offered his understanding
that the program will go forth by enacting this |egislation;
subsequently, the RCA would establish a program very simlar to
FERC s current program and would work with FERC to develop a
much better understanding of how this program is currently
regul at ed. M. Peterson suggested that the [new prograni can't
be much different from FERC s current program or FERC woul d not
approve of it, and that FERC has ultinmate veto power as to
whether the State of Alaska acquires jurisdiction over this
pr ogram He said the unknown variables could not be addressed

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- April 26, 2002



in this legislation, but rather would be addressed by the
adm ni strati on when devel opi ng the new program

Number 0391

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS referred to the sponsor statenent and he
asked for clarification about hydroelectric projects [l ocated on
I ndi an reservations, conservation wunits of [Al aska National
I nterest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA)], or rivers designated
for the WId and Scenic Rivers Systen] that would not be
eligible for state jurisdiction.

MR. PETERSON expl ai ned that the | anguage was taken directly from

federal legislation and that the only Indian reservation in
Alaska is Metlakatla, which the state wouldn't acquire
jurisdiction over. M. Peterson said he didn't know how many

WIld and Scenic Rivers there are in Al aska, but that any snmall
hydro projects on those rivers would not be applicable.

Nunmber 0500

CO- CHAIR SCALZI noved to adopt CSSB 140(FIN). There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

Number 0510

CO CHAIR  SCALZI turned attention to a proposed witten
anmendnent, which read [original punctuation provided]:

The Regulatory Commi ssion of Alaska, in colsultation
[sic] wth the Conm ssioners of DNR, DCED and DF&G
will report to the legislature by February 15th 2003
with their assessment of how the licensing of small
hydro projects by the state of Alaska would be
acconpl i shed. This report will include the inpact on
the operating budget, funding nmechani sm staff
requi renents, potential statutory changes, tinelines
and public participation for developing regulations
and any ot her itens deemed inportant by the
adm ni strati on.

CO CHAIR  SCALZI said he thought the proposed anmendnent
essentially asks for direction from the legislature and won't
have any effect on the bill. He asked if Senator Torgerson had
any problemw th the proposed amendnent.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 26, 2002



MR. PETERSON, in response, said Senator Torgerson doesn't think
the proposed anmendnent is necessary because this bill would go
into effect January 1, 2003. He suggested the new
adm nistration should be able to <coordinate wth those
departnments and work together so the RCA can develop a program
that closely resenbles FERC s program and satisfies all of the
agency's concerns. M. Peterson said it 1is the sponsors’
opinion that this [anendnment] would conplicate the issue. He
explained that the intent of the bill is to take the enabling
federal legislation and authorize the admnistration to begin
the process of discovering how the programw Il work and to work
with FERC to establish a program M. Peterson noted that the
proposed anmendnent may have an unnecessary fiscal inpact.

Number 0780

SALLY SADDLER, Legislative Liaison, Division of Community and
Busi ness Devel opnent, Department of Community & Economc
Devel opnent, testified. She explained that when this bill was

i ntroduced, the adm nistration convened an interagency team that
consisted of DNR ADF&G [Al aska Coastal Managenent Program
(ACMP)], RCA, and DCED to | ook over the bill to try to determne

what the full effects and inpacts would be. She said sone of
t hose comon points that had energed from the interagency teamns
review of the bill are that the RCA is an appropriate agency to

assune these duties, and while it represents an expansion of
what the RCA is currently doing, it is believed that the fiscal
notes will reflect those additional duties; that the devel opnent
of small hydro projects can support econom c devel opnent and
i nprove the availability and cost of hydropower in rural Al aska,;
and that a state program may have advantages by allow ng the
focus of the process to be on those issues that are pertinent to
Al aska.

M5. SADDLER explained that when this federal |[|egislation was

pending in Wshington, D.C., then-Governor Knowes wote a
letter that supported giving Alaska jurisdiction for the
t akeover of those "FERC-like" responsibilities. She said the

governor also recognized that this is a conplex undertaking and
the [inportance] of a state program that results in the proper
protection of fish, wildlife, and the environnment at |east as
well as, or as rigorously as, FERC currently does it. MVe.
Saddl er said the governor also acknow edged the inportance of
establishing an appropriate funding nechanism for the process
that could either be a direct appropriation or based on a user-
fee system Currently, she said, the RCA operates under the
regul atory cost-charge, which is a recovery system that passes

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 26, 2002



those fees on to different users. She offered her understanding
that [the RCA] is comng up against the regulatory cost-charge
cap.

M5. SADDLER noted that the packet contains three fiscal notes
for the RCA, DNR, and ADF&G and she suggested it will take up
to two years to develop regulations that define the program
oper ati ons. She said once those regulations have been
recommended or are established, FERC would have up to one year
to approve the program before ceding authority to the state, and
that the interagency team believes it would be prudent to have
the RCA and respective conm ssioners report the results of the
scoping project back to the |Ilegislature. Ms. Saddler said
agencies currently understand their roles and responsibilities
under the FERC process, but it is not entirely clear whether all
that FERC does and what the state will be assumng are fully
under st ood.

M5. SADDLER said, for exanple, in the case of ADF&G it is
unknown whet her the state would have the statutory authority to

take on the FERC program She explained that FERC has
jurisdiction over entire watersheds, while ADF& only has
oversi ght over streanbeds. She suggested that there may be a

m smatch and that sone statutory requirenents may need to be
i npl enent ed. Ms. Saddler said the thought is that with this
amendnent, itens like the inpact on the operating budget, the
kind of funding nechanism that would be reconmended, staffing
requi renents, and any sort of statutory changes that are needed
for the snmooth inplenentation of the provisions of this program
woul d be i ncl uded.

Nunber 1078

SUSAN SCHRADER, Al aska Conservation Voters (ACV), testified.
Ms. Schrader explained that this bill does begin the process of
authorizing state takeover of FERC authority for |I|icensing of
smal | hydro projects. She said ACV's main concern with this
program is the expense that wll be entailed to do this

properly, and while it is realized that FERC will have ultinmate
authority to approve whatever program the state conmes up wth
it is pretty unrealistic to suggest that this is a place where
the state should be putting its limted funds. Ms. Schrader
acknowl edged that there are sone problens with the FERC process,
and she said an appropriate response would be what the
congressional delegation can do to address those problenms wth
FERC. She suggested that there are no particul ar advantages to
the state's taking over this costly process, and she expressed

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- April 26, 2002



concern as to whether RCA is the appropriate |lead entity to be
| ooki ng at this.

M5. SCHRADER noted that FERC regulations are particularly
esoteric, and suggested that the RCA mght find that it is quite
a daunting task to design a program [and inplenent] all of the
regulations within two years. She turned attention to the
ongoing funding [that would be necessary] for the departnents to
i nplenent this program and she pointed out that DNR has had
problems with its water-quantity program because it doesn't have
enough funding or staff needed to process the applications, and
yet the legislature is |ooking at adding nore tasks and jobs to

its [workl oad]. She suggested that one of two things is going
to happen: Wth not enough noney to support the state's doing
this type of licensing, the small hydropower developers that

want the licenses are going to find that they're not gaining
time by the state having the authority and that it will be just
as tinmely a process as having FERC do it; in the alternative
the process will be short-cut so that the devel opers don't have
long tinme delays, and that wll cone at the expense of
unavoi dabl e environnental inpacts, resulting in a Jlot of
outraged public.

M5. SCHRADER expressed concern about the |anguage of the bill
and she said as it is currently witten, there is no protection

for state special lands - state parks, state gane refuges, and
critical habitat areas - leaving them all possibly open for
consideration for hydropower devel opnent. Certainly, she said,

any proposals to do projects in those areas are going to neet
with a ot of public opposition and lead to a |ot of delays,
whi ch, to her understanding, is one of the nmjor points of the
state's taking over, to avoid the delays that already exist with
FERC. She said ACV is very interested in finding ways to bring
cleaner, nore economcally affordable power generation to the
rural comunities and would like to see the reliance on diese
generation mnimzed as nuch as possi bl e.

Number 1312

M5. SCHRADER suggested that hydropower is not necessarily a
clean, environnentally friendly source; she said it can be under
certain situations but does require careful oversight. She said
ACV would like to see [rural comrunities] get away from diese

generation and nove toward hydropower, which, she suggested,
could still be done within the framework of the FERC process.
Ms. Schrader said there is no need for the state to assune what
she suspects will be a very costly program that the |egislature

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- April 26, 2002



is going to have to deal with yearly to fund all those positions

at the various departnments involved. She pointed out that
Al aska would be the very first state to which FERC woul d have
del egated the authority for this oversight. Ms. Schrader

suggested it my be a good thing, but she said she didn't know,
and that she thought it was little risky for the state to be
| ooking at that [because] it is the first tinme this has ever
been done.

COCHAIR MASEK noted that Representative Stevens' research
indicated that +there are 27 rivers |listed in the state
designated under the WId and Scenic R ver System that are
exenpt fromthis bill.

Nunber 1464

JAN KONI GSBERG, Trout Unlimted, noted that he was testifying on
behalf of Alaska Public Witers Coalition ("Coalition"). He
characterized the Coalition as an association that includes
sport fishing groups, conservation organizations, forner nenbers

of the "Alaska water board,”" and other individuals who are
concerned about executive actions or |egislative and regul atory
initiatives that af f ect Al aska's water resour ces. M

Koni gsberg explained that SB 140 will allow the State of Al aska
to assunme licensing authority for hydroelectric projects of five
nmegawatts or |ess. He said the Coalition believes that
regardless of the size, all proposed hydroelectric projects
should be scrutinized thorough a rigorous |icensing process to
ensure that the project, once constructed and in operation, wll
have the |east environnmental inpact possible over the life of
the project. M. Konigsberg said the Coalition is not opposed
to this legislation if the state can acconplish this I|icensing
in a manner at least as stringent as FERC, but the Coalition
does not believe that this will necessarily be the case.

VR. KONl GSBERG said the Coalition is puzzled by the
| egi sl atures' "seem ng eagerness" to nmandate that the state
assunme a federal program for which there is no acconpanying
appropriation, especially given the mgnitude of the state's
current fiscal problens. He suggested that the fiscal note, of
approxi mately $300,000 after the three-year period, is probably
too conservative of an estinate. M. Konigsberg tal ked about
the legislature's rationale for enbracing an unfunded federal
mandat e, and he suggested that the proponents of this
| egislation are convinced that a state l|licensing program wl|
provide reqgqulatory relief from what they believe to be an
onerous federal process, but that these sanme proponents

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- April 26, 2002



acknowl edge that the state process nust be as rigorous as that
of the federal governnment. "How can both be true, we would |ike
to know, " he asked.

MR. KONl GSBERG asked, if +the program was to be funded at
$300, 000 per year, how the general public would take that
appropriation that may cone from a general fund, when other dire

needs exi st within human service agenci es. He pointed out that
sone of these projects will be built by out-of-state hydropower
devel opers, sone of whom wll receive federal grants. M.
Koni gsberg said not only will the state be incurring significant
adm ni strative costs pursuant to hydropower licensing, it wll
assunme, "we believe," significant liability, particularly in the
area of dam safety. Currently, he explained, the state has no
liability for FERC-licensed projects; once the state undertakes
licensing, it wll also be responsible for dam inspection.

Therefore, he said, in the case of a dam failure, should that
result in damage to life and private property or result in
natural resource damage, it nmay not be the dam owner al one that
i's responsible or held accountabl e.

Number 1678

MR. KONl GSBERG suggested that if the state were sued, the cost
of litigation and actual damages could dwarf the annual cost of
the licensing program He said it is wshful thinking to
presune that a state regulatory program will be any speedier
than the current federal program First, he said, this will be

new terrain for the RCA, so startup mssteps and delays can be
expected, and he pointed out that DNR has not been able to keep
up with a relatively sinple and straightforward water rights
program So, realistically, how would DNR deal with an increase
in workload in its water and dam safety prograns as required by
state hydropower prograns, he asked. M . Koni gsberg suggested
if the real intent of this legislation is to achieve hydropower
licensing efficiency at the expense of stringent environnental
enforcenent by skinping on environnmental review and permtting

then these projects wll face Ilengthy delays due to |egal
chal | enges. He suggested that the FERC process works but needs
i nprovenent, and he said it would behoove the state to join wth
others to inprove the federal program rather than take on a new
programin this period of fiscal uncertainty.

Nunmber 1753

WLL ABBOIT, Comm ssioner, Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska
(RCA) , Department of Community and Economic Devel opnent,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- April 26, 2002



testified briefly. M. Abbott concurred with M. Saddler's
t esti nmony.

Nunber 1783

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS turned attention to the fiscal notes and
he asked M. Abbott if he had an idea of what the costs to the
state would be and if licensing fees would cover the cost of
i nspections.

MR. ABBOIT, in response, said federal legislation is silent on
whet her the state will receive the funding that now goes to FERC
for those projects. Currently, he explained, each operating
project pays FERC a charge based on the kilowatts that it
generates. He indicated that FERC puts that noney back into its
program to assist with staffing costs and to keep costs |ow for
future |icensees. He questioned how the state would do that
W thout tapping into the general fund "a whole bunch.” He also
guestioned how the state would get [the progran] started and
whether it would assune responsibility for existing hydro
projects of five nmegawatts or |ess. He indicated he did not
know whether the state would be receiving those funds and that
was one of the reasons the [departnent] wanted tinme to
communicate with FERC to try and resol ve those issues.

Nunber 1878

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked, if the legislature gives the
departnent state authority to have |icensing fees, whether that

will that resolve it or whether federal authority will also be
required.

MR. ABBOTT renarked, "Because it doesn't say on there, | would
assunme that we'll get that; maybe that's optimstically assum ng
on ny part, but |I'm assumng because it is silent, that we
will."

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked for clarification on whether he
was referring to the state bill or the federal |aw.

MR. ABBOTT, in response, said they are both silent.
Nunber 1929
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked if giving [nanagenent] of the

licensing process to the state rather than the federal
government woul d be | ess rigorous and | ess denandi ng.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- April 26, 2002



MR. ABBOIT suggested FERC was not going to let the [state] "get
away with a whole lot,” and that the [objective of a state-
operated program is not only to try to nmke it an easier
process, but also to get the process back to the state where
[residents] deal with the problens, rather than sonebody in
Washington [D.C]. He nmentioned that many of the permtting
functions and the tasks done by the state agencies wll require
sending the data back to the FERC for its deci sion.

Number 2003

CH P DENNERLEIN, Director, Division of Habitat and Restoration
Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G, testified. M.
Dennerlein noted he had prior involvenent with FERC in sone of
his former capacities. He said the position of ADF&G is

supportive and consistent with the admnistration's position and
has been expressed throughout the devel opnent of t he
congressi onal enabling |egislation. M. Dennerlein specul ated
t hat [restructuring the prograni could be a positive
contribution to energy needs, particularly, in rural Al aska. He
suggested that the state program can provide at |east the [sane]
|l evel of fish and wildlife resource protection as the current

FERC process. M. Dennerlein advised the commttee that that
qualifier is very inportant because nost of these projects wll
be in or adjacent to rural Alaskan communities, in stream and

river valleys that are close to these comunities, and that
| ocal and state residents utilize fish and wildlife resources in
t hese ar eas.

MR. DENNERLEIN said the FERC process allows ADF& to work
effectively with these issues on a watershed basis to get the
informati on needed to make good decisions and in defining what
information will be needed, both in helping to define the scope
of information needed from applicants and other sources and in
getting FERC as an agent in helping obtain that information.
M. Dennerlein said this is not unlike, in sone ways, the state
coastal managenent process for coastal projects, where the
[departnent] works on a broader scale wth other resource
agenci es and puts a package of standards together for a project.
He remarked, "ACWMP is the way we step out of the streanbed where
Title 16 gives us clear authority bank to bank."

Nunmber 2169

MR. DENNERLEI N nentioned that a nechanism that would allow this
to be done beyond an ACMP process in the Interior, outside of

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- April 26, 2002



the coastal zone, was unknown or could not be foreseen at this
tinme. He tal ked about an exanple involving a major interchange
that the Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
(DOT&PF) is building along the Parks H ghway and G enn H ghway
and the permtting that is going forward the follow ng sunmer
He nentioned that an anadronmous fish stream exists in the area
and it is very clear the [departnent] has Title 16 authority,
but the real issue is beyond the defined stream banks and the
fl ooded wetlands; [the issue is] that the area in between is a
host to 6,000 juvenile coho salnon per acre that go to five
streans.

MR. DENNERLEIN said this is one of the highest producing coho-
rearing areas in Upper Cook Inlet and is a major resource-
protection interest and mjor public interest. He said the
departnment works on that issue through the ACWMP; in the FERC
process, the departnment is also able to work on a watershed

basis wthout a statutory basis. He noted that the departnent
is unsure how to do that in this legislation and that it is one
of the things that needs to be investigated. M. Dennerlein
mentioned an exanple of a project that was built in Kodiak in
which the major wildlife concern was brown bears. He said the

project is operational but did require sone creative sol utions.
Number 2291

MR. DENNERLEIN cited False Creek as an exanple because it fits
in this range as a 3.5 negawatt [project] and is unique because
it is a project that is proposed in dacier Bay National Park
and Preserve, in congressionally designated wi |l derness. He said

it my well receive a I|icense because of sone creative
solutions, including a | and exchange. He noted that Fal se Creek
is simlar and that it involved |locals, property owners,
spawni ng fish, subsistence, and so forth. M. Dennerlein

offered support for the concept but expressed concern about
statutory authority, the front-end ability of funding, and the
foll owthrough and re-licensing of these projects. He said this
is why there is such strong support for the report back to the
| egislature so the legislature has a clear chance to see what
exactly this takes for the job to be done right, because if it
goes wong, it will go wong for a | ot of people.

Nunber 2394

CO CHAI R MASEK, upon determ ning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- April 26, 2002



CO CHAIR SCALZI noted his belief that this is a good bill and
shoul d be noved forward. He said after listening to testinony,
he felt the anendnment woul d be unnecessary.

Nunmber 2453

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the commssion has the
authority to charge a fee for |icensing.

MR. PETERSON, in response, said it is his understanding that the
intent of the federal enabling legislation is that the RCA would
charge user fees in the sane manner it does currently. He said
there will be sone startup costs to get the program under the
state's jurisdiction, but eventually the program will be paid
for by the fees fromthe hydro projects.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the bill has to contain
specific |language that allows the agency to receive funds.

MR. PETERSON said he didn't believe so and that it is going to
be part of the discussion between the RCA and FERC when this
program i s established. He suggested that the bill only needs
to [contain |anguage] giving the admnistration authority to
develop the regulations for this project because FERC is going
to have the ultimate veto on whether [the state] is able to do
it. M. Peterson suggested that the RCA would ask for the
authority to charge those fees and use those fees to pay for the
project, which is what FERC currently does. He said hopefully,
[it would be approved] as long as it's not in direct conflict
with the way FERC currently nanages the programin the state.

Nunber 2572

CO CHAIR SCALZI noved to report CSSB 140(FIN) out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, CSSB 140(FIN) was reported
fromthe House Resources Standing Commttee.

SB 356- GENERAL PERM T FOR WATER/ WASTE DI SPOSAL

CO- CHAIR MASEK announced that the next order of business would
be SENATE BILL NO 356 am "An Act relating to the authority of
the Departnent of Environnmental Conservation to issue general
and individual permts for waste disposal; and providing for an
effective date."

Number 2634

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- April 26, 2002



JOE BALASH, Staff to Senator Gene Therriault, Al aska State
Legislature, presented SB 356 on behalf of the Senate State
Affairs Standing Conmmttee, sponsor, which Senator Therriault
chairs. M. Balash characterized SB 356 as a bill that
establishes procedures for developing and issuing genera

permts in the Departnment of Environnmental Conservation's (DEC)

Division of Air & Water Quality. He explained that a general
permt is used to regulate a class of operation that is fairly
standard and simlar throughout (indisc.) achieved across the
i ndustry. He renarked:

A very handy exanple ... is the washing down of a
cenment truck. If you own a cenent truck, there's no
way you're going to let the cenent harden inside the
cont ai ner. It needs to be washed out on a daily
basi s.

However, in order to wash that truck out, you don't
want the dirty water ... to go into a stream or any

other environnentally sensitive area, and so there
woul d be some general considerations given to how that
i s done.

A general permt would be issued by the departnent
that woul d say anybody washing out their cenment truck
woul d have to avoid doing it next to a stream That's
a fairly sinplistic exanpl e but usef ul for
illustration purposes.

MR. BALASH turned attention to page 2, line 26, and he said the
word "cunul atively" replaced the original proposed | anguage. He
expl ai ned that the change was nmade at the request of the Al aska
Conservation Voters (ACV), but was done with a little bit of
concern because the word "cunulative" is a sonewhat "I oaded"
term in the regulatory comrunity. He said in connection with
NEPA [National Environnmental Policy Act of 1969], there is a
curul ative inpact analysis statement in which a given action
calls for the determ nation of the cunulative inpacts. He said
that's not at all what this [language] is intended to inply, and
in no way is the sponsor asking that a cunulative inpact
anal ysi s be done.

MR. BALASH said the word is only speaking to discharges,
i ncludi ng discharges that are currently ongoing, in addition to
the di scharges proposed to be added by this general permt. He
said Senator Therriault asked himto inform the commttee of a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 26, 2002



nunber of anmendnments that have cone to light in the last 48
hours, including one to be brought [forward] by the Arny. M.
Bal ash said while Senator Therriault is not unsynpathetic to the
concerns of the Arny or its interests, the balance in this bill
has been struck by a working group of industry, the regulating
community, and the regulating bodies in state governnent. The
bal ance is a fine one, he said, and it is preferred that it not
be upset by any anendnents at this tine.

Nunber 2876

COLONEL FRED LEHVAN, U.S. Arny Alaska Garrison Comander,
testified. Col onel Lehrman reported that on 04/12/02 a group of
national and 1|ocal environmental organizations sued the U S.
Arny and the U S. Departnent of Defense in an attenpt to close
down Fort Richardson's only artillery training range in the
Eagle River Flats. The Eagle R ver Flats, he explained, is the
only location south of the Al aska Range where soldiers conduct
live-fire heavy-artillery training, and that the mlitary has
used this range as an artillery range for the last 50 years.
Col onel Lehman said proper training is essential to the success
of mlitary operation and is a matter of troop readiness. He
remar ked about the young nen and wonen who risk their lives to
uphold the values that [U S. citizens] so strongly cherish and
how before sending soldiers into |life-and-death situations [the
mlitary has] a legal and noral obligation to provide them with
full training required to achieve the mlitary's objectives and
also mnimze the risk of [harm to thenselves and innocent
civilians.

COLONEL LEHVAN tal ked about having half a dozen soldiers in
Af ghanistan in harmis way and how they trained on those ranges
at Fort Richardson in regular training exercises that included

the use of live amunition, artillery explosives, high-caliber
weaponry, et cetera. He said it also neans that large |and
areas such as Eagle River Flats nust remain available for such
exercises and that the Arny's ability to continue live-fire
training is critical to Fort Richardson's national defense
m ssi on. Col onel Lehman  explained that because [Fort

Ri chardson] is the only location south of the Al aska Range where
soldiers conduct live-fire training, its reason for existence is
to train soldiers for wartinme operations. He said Fort
Ri chardson's future is at risk and that the Arny is engaging a
new round of BRAC [Base Realignnent and C osure] closures
starting in 2005.

TAPE 02-39, SIDE B

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- April 26, 2002



Nunmber 2995

COLONEL LEHVAN explained that the plaintiffs in the l|awsuit
argue that the federal courts should force the Arny to close the
Eagle R ver Flats range because the Arny has not obtained a DEC
solid waste disposal permt under AS 46.03.100 for the firing of
artillery nmunitions on the Eagle River Flats. He explained that
DEC has never required a permt under AS 46.03.100 for munitions
fired on active mlitary ranges. He said the artillery that the
Arny is firing are explosive rounds, not solid waste. He
suggested this has been done in the U S. for about 240 years.
and he talked about activities that neet AS 46.03.100 permt
requi renents, such as wastewater discharge or the construction
of solid waste |andfills.

COLONEL LEHVAN suggested that the plaintiff's attenpt to force
DEC to regulate live-fire mlitary training activities on active
mlitary ranges sets an unacceptable precedent. If the effort
succeeds, he said, DEC may well be pressured into attenpting to
regulate other critical aspects of training exercises, such as
the type of nmunitions fired, firing locations, firing tines, and
ot her paraneters. He suggested that DEC is not equipped to do
so and that the Arny has no reason to believe that DEC wi shes to

assunme this role. |It's a bad idea all around, he commented. He
noted that this bill deals with DECs authority to issue
di sposal permts under AS 46.03.100 and that the bill already

contains a list of exceptions.
Number 2919

COLONEL LEHMAN brought attention to a witten anmendnent that
read [original punctuation provided]:

SB 356 am shall be anended to add a new section that
reads as foll ows:

Sec. . AS 46.03.100(d) is anended to read:
(d) This section does not apply to

(1) disposals subject to regulation under
AS 31.05.030(e)(2);[OR

(2) injection projects permtted under AS
31.05.030(h)[.]; or

(3) discharges resulting from the firing or
ot her use of nunitions in training activities
conducted on active ranges operated by the United
States Departnment of Defense or a United States
mlitary agency.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 26, 2002



COLONEL LEHVAN explained that the Arny is requesting the
| egislature to adopt a short, sinple anmendnent that would add
solid waste disposal activities resulting from the firing of
munitions in training activities conducted on active mlitary

ranges to the list of activities exenpted from this permt
requi renent. He said by enacting a straightforward anendnent,
the legislature will help ensure that the Arny Al aska remnains

able to properly train those people in the arnmed forces and that
Fort Richardson retains an inportant role in the nation's
def ense strategy.

Nunmber 2879

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he was surprised to learn that Arny
bases have to conply with state regul ations. He asked if that
is the case throughout the country.

COLONEL LEHMAN said no; this is the first lawsuit of this type.
He explained that on [04/25/02] the Arny filed a Clean Water Act
permt wth the EPA [Environnmental Protection Agency]. He
reported that he had been in consultation with the EPA region's
head environnment chief for the past six nonths, and he
indicated that the EPA is wuncertain about both it and the
state's involvenent in the issue. However, he said, this issue
has to be addressed because a |l awsuit has been filed against the
mlitary.

Nunmber 2836

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked whether permts are normally
requi red under these kinds of circunstances or if this is an
unusual situation. She asked for nore information on the court
case.

Number 2817

JOHN  Mc DONAGH, Envi r onnment al Counsel , U. S. Arnmy Al aska,
testified. M. MDonagh explained that the |lawsuit against the
US Any, the Departnent of Defense, and Secretary Donald
Runsfeld in his official capacity was filed in the U S. D strict
Court, District of Alaska, on April 12, 2002. He said the
plaintiffs in the lawsuit are the Al aska Conmmunity Action on
Toxics (ACAT), Cook Inlet Keeper; the Chickaloon Village
Traditional Council; two individual plaintiffs, Janet Daniels
and Richard Martin; and the MIlitary Toxics Project, which is a
national environmental group that has filed other |awsuits

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- April 26, 2002



against the mlitary's use of ranges at other places throughout

the country. He explained that the lawsuit has three separate
primary clainms: The first deals with the Arny's alleged failure
to have a Clean Water Act permt. The second deals with the

failure to have a AS 46.03.100 solid waste disposal permt for
the firing of nmunitions into the Eagle River Flats. The third
is a claim under CERCLA [ Conprehensive Environnental Response,
Conmpensation, and Liability Act], commonly known as Superfund,
alleging that the Arnmy needs to have a renedial investigation or
feasibility study (RI/FS) done for Fort Richardson on the Eagle
Ri ver Fl ats.

MR. MDONAGH said this is very interesting because a CERCLA
RI/FS was conducted on Eagle River Flats and found only one
contam nant of concern - white phosphorus, which affects
wat er f ow . That was addressed through a record of decision
signed by the EPA and DEC, and that renmedy for white phosphorus
was i nplenented beginning a couple of years ago, he explained.
M. MDonagh reported that the record on decision also concl uded
that no other contamnants of concern exist with respect to
Eagle River Flats. He said that's not the Arny's concl usion;
that's EPA and DEC s conclusion as set forth in CERCLA
Needl ess to say, the Arny is very concerned about the ability to
continue to train for the reasons that Col onel Lehnan stated, he
sai d. M. MDonagh said this is one of the highest profile
| awsuits that the Arny has, and that the mlitary has nationw de

inplications on an issue it refers to as encroachnent. He
explained that this is a najor issue that inpacts the ability to
train; inpacts the future viability of Fort R chardson as a
training facility; it does potentially inpact training

facilities at Fort Geely and Fort Wainwight, which is why the
Arny is asking for the legislature's help.

Nunmber 2669

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. MDonagh if the Arny had any
type of restraining order in place or if training is allowed to
continue until the lawsuit is decided.

MR. MDONAGH, in response, explained that the conplaint, as
filed, requests an injunctive relief prohibiting the Arny from
continuing to conduct the activities at the Eagle River Flats.

However, he said, there has been no prelimnary injunction
notion filed, so currently there is no injunction in place. M.

McDonagh clarified that because of concerns over wldlife and
the environnent, the Arny never fires at the Eagle River Flats

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- April 26, 2002



over the summer nonths, so there would be no need to seek an
injunction at the present period of tine.

COLONEL LEHVAN said correct; the Arny's SOPs [standard operating
procedures] require that there must be six inches of ice before
firing commences.

Number 2617

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked how | ong the arsenal had been used in
that area

MR. MDONAGH, in response, said the Arny has used the Eagle
River Flats since the 1940s and it was a nmjor range in Wrld
War I1; it was also used throughout the Korean War and right up
to the present. M. MDonagh said the Arny discovered white
phosphorus in the early 1980s, and when it was discovered to be
a problem the Arnmy ceased using it in 1990, but has continued
to use artillery at the range for practice.

CO CHAIR MASEK asked if the Arny has ever applied for a solid
waste permt.

MR. McDONAGH, in response, said no, the position taken by [ DEC
is that it has never requested the Arnmy to [apply for a permt],
and the Arny's position has always been that this is not solid
waste and is not subject to the permtting requirenent. He said
he was informed that consistent with past practice, DEC has no
desire to regulate in this area and the Arny has no desire to
have DEC regulate in this area. M. MDonagh remarked, "So, all
we're asking for is the status quo (indisc.)." The only reason
this is an issue before this commttee is not because of
anything anyone in the Arny is doing differently or anything
that the agency is doing differently; it is because it has been
raised as a claim by the plaintiffs in this lawsuit in an
attenpt to shut [the Arny's use of the Eagle River Flats for
trai ni ng] down, he said.

Number 2544

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS remarked, "I think of Wrld War |l and
when the Japanese had taken Attu and Kiska and we attacked them
to take them back, if these people had been around, you would
have been required to have ... perm ssion before you could have
| aunched the attack; ... the whole thing is just bizarre." He
said it seenms to him that Alaska's currently at the front on
this issue, and he suggested that there are a |lot nore bases

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- April 26, 2002



around the United States that use a lot nore artillery than is
used in Al aska. He speculated that there nust be a lot nore
sites that are in worse condition than Al aska.

COLONEL LEHMAN, in response, said this will be a test case.

MR. MDONAGH said correct; this is an issue around the country
in many different ways. He nentioned a briefing he had attended
in the previous week in which sone Marines from Canp Pendl eton
explained what it's like to have 23 mles of beach and only be
able to use about a half mle of that beach. He said the
Marines can't even do a beach-to-beach diversion anynore and
that when they do hit the beach, instead of digging foxholes,
they have to lay out tape to mark where the foxhole would be
because they're not allowed to dig on that beach; then they go
back to the barracks and practice digging. He said if the issue
is called encroachnment, it's one of the largest issues that the
US mlitary has facing it now M. MDonagh remarked, "It's
come hone to rest here in our little case in our mlitary base
here in Al aska, and that's why we're here."

Nunmber 2467

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked what the problem is with white
phosphor us.

COLONEL LEHVAN, in response, said it is used for a burning and

snoke agent and requires air for it to oxidize and go off. | f
it stays under the water, it wll stay in pellet form but it
will oxidize and kill waterfowl if ingested. He expl ai ned that

the Arny recognized the issue and subsequently spent mllions of
dollars renmediating it in a very public way such as inviting
groups out and asking for participation for quarterly
restoration advisory boards, et cetera.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked whether |ocal shooting ranges are
required to obtain permts to be able to use munitions for
shoot i ng.

MR. McDONAGH said to his know edge, solid waste disposal permts
are not required in Al aska for any other nunicipal ranges.

COLONEL LEHVMAN clarified that this [lawsuit] has a community
impact that affects others that use or train on this range,
including: the U S. National Guard, the Al aska State Troopers,
the Anchorage Police Departnent, the Federal Bureau of
| nvestigation, and private citizens.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 26, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said the court case should decide this
i ssue, and she talked about the possibility of an injunction.
She asked how onerous it is to go through a DEC permtting
process to get a permt.

MR. MDONAGH said the Arny may be facing an injunction, but is
not facing one at this particular nmonment in tine. He said the
notion that AS 46.03.100 would be expanded to cover these
activities and therefore potentially subject very detailed
mlitary issues to the purview of an agency that admttedly has
no background or interest in this particular area is both
dangerous and unwi se, in the Arnmy's view.

COLONEL LEHVAN said when the mlitary starts unexpected training
with high artillery ammunition, there is a reason for it, and
[the mlitary] doesn't normally want to disclose why it's being
done, who is being trained, or what the purposes are.

Nunber 2298

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS asked whether it would be in the purview
of Congress to exenpt national defense exercises from state
managenent and contr ol

COLONEL LEHVAN said the issue is currently being addressed at
t he executive |evel. He said this is a three-part [issue], and
one part is at the state |evel.

MR. MDONAGH said the Arny is here [before the |egislature]
because it has a specific state issue before it and a specific

| awsuit brought against a facility within the state. He said
this broader issue of encroachnment is receiving very significant
attention at the national |evel. Unfortunately, he said, none
of that attention will conme in time to help the Arny at the

Eagl e River Flats.
Nunmber 2254

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN suggested that it is ironic that this
activity has been done for over 60 years and it seens incredible

that mllions of dollars are being spent on national defense
but there is a concern that naybe our troops shouldn't be
training to utilize arsenal. He said it doesn't make sense to
hi m

Nunber 2186

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- April 26, 2002



SUSAN SCHRADER, Al aska Conservation Voters (ACV), testified.
Ms. Schrader said ACV does appreciate and agree with DEC that
there are certain activities that are very appropriately managed
with a general permt, and ACV does not have a problem wi th nost
of the general permts that the departnent currently has. She
said ACV's understanding is that the bill wll put sone
clarifying language into statute that addresses DEC s authority
to issue general permts. She expressed concern that the bill
is anbiguous and overly broad, and because of that, is open to
abuse.

M5. SCHRADER said this bill goes far beyond what the departnent
needs to address for the washing out of cenent trucks or high
school carwashes, which are not activities that are necessarily
of concern. She suggested having a bill that puts sone
sidebars, structure, and limts on what can be covered by a
general permt.

MS. SCHRADER indicated that ACV is opposed to the bill because
of previously expressed concerns. Ms. Schrader said she was
just made aware of the mlitary situation and is not prepared to
speak on the lawsuit, but that it is her observation that
[ Col onel Lehman and M. MDonagh] are asking the legislature to
try this case right now in the form of this anmendnent and that
she thought that is totally unfair and truly the antithesis of
the governnent process. Ms. Schrader suggested that perhaps
menbers of the commttee would |ike the opportunity to hear from
those other parties involved in this litigation and the reasons
this litigation was brought forward and sonme of the efforts that
the environnental groups have gone through to work with the
mlitary to address the issues before they were forced to bring
litigation forward. She remarked, "I truly think it s
i nappropriate for the commttee to sit here as the judge of the
merits of litigation that | doubt any of us have had a chance to
| ook at "

CO-CHAIR MASEK rem nded M. Schrader that the comittee is
deliberating a bill, not acting as judges.

M5. SCHRADER suggested it is much nore appropriate to address
the concerns through litigation and let the |egal process
determne the nmerits of the plaintiff's case. She said in 1994,
Fort Richardson was listed as a Superfund site and that because
of mlitary activities, there are 27,000 toxic "hot spots"
around the country. Ms. Schrader noted the Chickaloon tribe as
having concerns for their health and well-being, and she

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 26, 2002



suggested she herself would be concerned if she owned property
near one of these sites. She suggested the commttee take a
| ook at the sincere concerns of folks who don't want their
ground water contamnated and don't want to have to depend on
living in an area that has potentially been polluted by mlitary
activities.

Number 1915

MS. SCHRADER nentioned her sincere concerns about what has gone
on in the country and around the world and about mlitary
i ssues, but she suggested that giving the mlitary an exenption
from all environnental laws that are here to protect public
health is not in anybody's best interest. She said she finds it
a little ironic that the mlitary is doing these exercises to
train its personnel to protect the resources and at the sane
time, through its very activities - the request through federa

| egislation and this anmendnent - [wishes to] be exenpted from
those very laws that protect the water quality.

COCHAIR SCALZI talked about his experience at the |oca
shooting range and he said he wondered why the US. mlitary is
targeted as the environnental "test spot" of such activity when
it is occurring in local comunities throughout the U S He
suggested if the environnental comrunity had real concerns about
pollutants, the issue would initially be addressed at a | ocal
| evel .

Nunber 1780

M5. SCHRADER brought attention to the fact that there are
hundreds  of envi ronnent al gr oups, from |ocal groups to
international groups, that do their work at all levels, and she
said she cannot speak to the plaintiffs in this case or whether
t hey have worked on other |ocal issues. M. Schrader noted that
she personally had the experience of wrking on an issue
surrounding the local gun range at Mntana Creek, and she
suggested the potential contam nation of that soil and ground
water with lead and other heavy netals from years of use is
quite high. She also nentioned that DEC had indicated it would
be ideal to regulate those sites "in the perfect world.” She
suggested that in that scenario, DEC would have the ability to
regul ate those sites and work to ensure that those toxic areas
are cleaned up. M. Schrader suggested housing devel opnents are
encroaching on the gun range at Mntana Creek and that the
ground water nmay be contam nat ed.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- April 26, 2002



CO CHAIR SCALZI suggested that Jlarge targets such as the
mlitary or factory trawlers are "picked on," rather than |oca
targets, and have the potential to inpact national security or
have | arge econom c inpacts to Alaska. He said he was amazed at
what the Cook Inlet Keeper was involved in with regard to the
| awsuit. He spoke to Ms. Schrader's suggestion that the Arny is
asking the legislature to try the case, and he asked why the
environmental community didn't come to the legislature first to
get help. Going right to the courts is the "first line of
att ack” rather than settling the [issue] t hrough | ocal
| egi sl ati on, he suggested. He asked Ms. Schrader if she thought
that woul d have been a better nethod rather than going right to
the mlitary and filing a | awsuit.

Nunber 1617

M5. SCHRADER said it is her wunderstanding that the groups
involved in [the lawsuit] have worked with the mlitary for
several years to try to cooperatively conme to sone alternative
arrangement s.

CO CHAIR SCALZI pointed out that this is the first that the
| egi sl ature has heard of this issue.

M5. SCHRADER noted that she had brought nany environnental
i ssues and concerns forward to the |egislature over the years,

and that it is a very frustrating proposition. She nentioned
the six anmendnents that had she brought forward to the sponsor
of this bill with the intention of helping to clarify the bill,
and the fact that every one of those anendnents had been turned
down. She suggested that ACV has tried in sincere honesty to
work through the legislative process and that this is not an
"easy game" for an environnentali st to play wth the

| egi sl ature. She maintained that there are two sides to every
story that and only one side of the story is being heard.

Nunber 1517

TOM CHAPPLE, Director, Division of Ar and Wter Quality,
Departnent of  Environnental Conservati on, testified. M.
Chappl e said for about the last three and a half years, DEC has
been working to rebuild its wastewater permtting program and
had done so after assenbling a stakehol der group conposed of the
resource devel opment community, |ocal governnment, environnenta
organi zations, <citizens' organizations such as the RCA and
federal and other state agencies. He said that work resulted in
10 basic recommendations fromthe group and that this bill is an

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- April 26, 2002



outgromth of a recommendation that the departnent should use
nore general permts in overseeing certain activities and in
mtigating the inpacts of discharges.

MR. CHAPPLE said the bill reflects a delicate balance anong the

varied groups and that not all parties agreed that general
permts should be aggressively pursued. There was sone
rel uctance, but a majority of the nenbers of the work group did
agree, he noted. He explained that it is the departnent's

belief that general permts are useful and appropriate when the
risk to the environnent is low or when there is a conmon
treatment practice that wll mtigate that risk. It is
i nportant when general permts are devel oped, he expl ai ned, that
the public has an opportunity to comment on the devel opnent of
that [permt], as well as to know what activities are permtted
under a general permt; a general permt could apply to a nunber
of operations, so knowng where those operations are is

i nportant. M. Chapple noted that this bill acconplishes those
two primary objectives for the departnent. He said the
departnent supports the bill and believes it is a positive bil

that it would like to see nove forward.
Nunber 1377

MR. CHAPPLE called attention to the subject of the Eagle River
Flats, and he said the departnent has never requested that a
permt be required for solid waste or wastewater discharge and
has no intention or desire to inpede the training activities.
Qobviously, he said, that's an inportant function. He noted that

the bill is the result of an ongoing l|lawsuit and, paraphrasing
from AS 46.03.900, he explained that the definition of solid
waste basically neans all wunwanted, abandoned, or discarded
mat eri al . He said in regard to rifle ranges or nunitions

ranges, the departnent's position is that it is not abandoned
waste until the site is no |longer active. When the site is no
| onger active and is intended to be closed, it could be handl ed
as solid waste if that's appropriate, he said. If there is
contam nation of the ground water or [other] water, then it
woul d be handled as a contam nated site cleanup. He said the
departnment has never inplenented [such permtting] or suggested
that a permt would be required. It is the departnent's belief
that the operative |anguage the departnent has used, which is
part of the state's precedent for nmaking those decisions, would
be beneficial to the court when this case is heard, as well as
the definition that the departnment is using, he explained.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- April 26, 2002



MR. CHAPPLE said the departnment doesn't view that a change in
the law is necessary to acconplish what the Arny mght be
| ooking for and that the court will hear how the state has nade
decisions in the past and what it rests [its decisions on]. He
suggested to the comrittee that the issue being heard is really
a different issue than the substance of the bill that is before
them even though the title change would allow this change. M.
Chapple said the bill is structured to talk about general
permts and has been brought together by a nunber of people of
very diverse interests to strike a balance. He said if the bil

is anended to include the Eagle River Flats issue, it will bring
with it the other parties that are a part of that |awsuit and
the anxiety and the issues associated with that suit. \Ys

Chappl e said the department is concerned and would prefer thai
the bill stay sinple and be conpleted the way it is.

Number 1171

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked whether an environnental review would
be required if a newrifle range were bei ng established.

MR. CHAPPLE noted that he doesn't mnage the solid waste
program and he said he believes the answer is no, the
departnment does not permt and would not require a permt for
any rifle range, but local zoning requirenents mght cone into

pl ay.
Nunmber 1098

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the Arny is currently required
to live by federal and environnental | aws.

MR. CHAPPLE said he had been doing environnmental work for over
20 years and had seen a change in the |laws when sovereign
immunity was asserted by the U S. Departnent of Defense a nunber
of years ago and exenpted from environnental | aws. Those | aws
have changed over the last 15 years, and the Departnent of
Defense is generally obligated to neet state and national

envi ronnment al | aws. He said there is currently a discussion on
a national scale about the issue of sovereign immunity and
whet her certain actions should be exenpted. In fact, he said,

the commissioner of DEC is currently at a neeting with the
comm ssioners of all environnental agencies of the state, and
sonme of the discussion is focusing on the various aspects of the
sovereign imunity tasks, what would be exenpted, and certain
proposals that are out. M. Chapple said this issue has cone
forth as an adjustnment in state law, but is that adjustnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- April 26, 2002



going to be needed in every other state |aw? M. Chapple
suggested that the issue needs to be addressed on a national
scale and that national environmental |aws need to be |ooked at
totry to strike the right bal ance.

Nunmber 0945

MATT G LL, Staff to Representative Eldon Milder, Al aska State
Legi slature, testified. M. GIl said Representative Milder
currently represents Fort R chardson Arny base and supports any
anendnents that would clarify the Arnmy's position regarding the
use of the Eagle River Flats artillery training range.

Nunmber 0875

CO CHAI R MASEK, upon determ ning no one else wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

MR. BALASH said he didn't think the sponsor's position would
change and that there are a nunber of issues surrounding the
| awsuit. He indicated one of the main issues is whether this is
the only place in statute that needs to be changed, and he said
in the idea of good governnent and evenhandedness, Ms. Schrader
pointed out that there are a nunber of other individuals that
woul d be nore than happy to provide testinony and information on
this issue if they were given the opportunity. M. Bal ash said
Senator Therriault has expressed to him that he would be happy
to support the introduction and passage of a separate piece of
| egislation that would allow this issue to be addressed by the
| egi slature, would afford the public an opportunity to |ook at
the issue conprehensively, and also would allow the departnent
to perhaps take a nore conplete |look at the position of the
state and where these types of issues should be addressed in
state statute.

Number 0700

COLONEL LEHVAN said he thought it was a paranount issue. He
tal ked about the BRAC closures and the need for the artillery
range to train. He said the Arny is poised to put a brand new
formation called a IBCT [Interim Brigade Conbat Tean] that is

going to bring over $1 billion in new construction into the
state. He said he didn't think the Arny is poised to invest
that nmuch noney if it will not be allowed to train here and that

it will probably nove that el enent to sonewhere el se.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- April 26, 2002



COLONEL LEHVAN said it would help the [Arny's] cause to get a
pi ece of |egislation pushed through. He said he was uncertain
about the success of the proposed amendnent, but he wanted to
ensure that the legislature had the opportunity to express what
it wuld like the mlitary's function and performance to be in

the state of Al aska. He remarked, "If the lawsuit says we file,
we will file; it just puts nore burdens on the mlitary to
perform their mssion." He said he can understand the position

of Senator Therriault and his staff.

COLONEL LEHVAN said he never thought it was a requirenent to
have special permts to fire normally assigned weapons that
Congress bought the mlitary to train and use to defend this
land or that the [Arny] would have to ask to fire those weapons

on lands that were set aside for that purpose. He said he is
willing to work with the legislature and the sponsor of the
bill, and he closed by saying that the Arny just wanted the

opportunity for the legislature to hear its story.

MR. McDONAGH said the Arny is not asking the legislature to try
the case; it is asking the legislature to confirm the present,
past, and intended future practices of DEC so as not to engage
itself in regulating mlitary training exercises and allow ng
those exercises to be precluded at a facility that's essential
for training its sol diers.

REPRESENTATI VE CGREEN expressed concern about time constraints
that woul d hi nder passage of new | egislation, and the urgency of
the mlitary to address this issue. He nentioned DEC s
disinterest in permtting rifle ranges and the artillery that
the mlitary wuses for training, and the fact that [the
artillery] explode and don't |eave the sane residue found at a
rifle range. He tal ked about including the proposed anendnent
so that the mlitary can continue training. He indicated he
doesn't foresee it upsetting the delicate bal ance of the bill.

The commttee took an at-ease from3:25 p.m to 3:28 p.m

Number 0361

CO- CHAIR MASEK noted that the commttee would hold SB 356 am for
further review and the opportunity to work with the sponsor to

try to create a workabl e anendnent.

Nunmber 0268

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -32- April 26, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS nentioned other types of mlitary
artillery use and questioned whether it is related and should
al so be | ooked at.

CO CHAI R MASEK suggested that the subject be discussed with the
bill's sponsor and the drafter of the proposed anendnent.
[ SB 356 am was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:29 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 33- April 26, 2002



